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Green Mountain Power Corporation 

ANSWERS TO QUESTIONS SUBMITTED  

regarding the 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
 

Program Coordinator for the Renewable Development Fund (RDF) 
 

Please note:   

 This and any other documents relating to the RFP are available at: 

http://www.vermontbidsystem.com/BidPreview.aspx?BidID=12995 

(The Vermont Business Registry and Bid System) 

 Proposals are due by 4:00 p.m. on November 25
th

, 2015.   

1.) What is the expected time commitment for this project?  How many 
hours per week and/or per month is this project expected to require 
over the course of a year? 

There is no set number of hours per week expected. The RDF expects the consultant selected to 

diligently and efficiently pursue the scope of work listed on pages 2 and 3.  Any proposal will be judged 

according to the criteria listed on page 5.  Typically a budget will include an item for labor or personnel; 

note that the budget criteria call for sufficiently described and reasonable costs.   

2.) A portion of the scope of work is to “guide farmers in applying for grant 
funding including writing and analysis”.  Does this mean the 
coordinator is expected to write the complete grant and submit it on 
the behalf of the farmer essentially providing a “turn-key” grant writing 
service or just to assist with certain aspects of the overall grant 
application process? 

Historically the role of the project coordinator has been to support the grant writing process, 

matching their specific expertise to farmer need. The consultant should understand what is available, 

including the key contacts and resources to help the farm complete the application.  In its proposal, the 

consultant could specify what level of grant-writing support is optimal given other work elements and 

how the consultant plans to achieve the outcomes (see page 4 of the RFP).   

3.) Is the program coordinator expected to cold call farmers to develop 
leads for potential projects or will there be a source of qualified leads 
from which the program coordinator can work? 

The consultant is free to use whatever approach it anticipates will serve to reach the goals it 

specifies.  Please refer to the RFP, specifically “Outreach Activities” on page 2, shown below: 

Outreach Activities 
1. Contact farmers in a deliberate, tracked way. Organize and lead a meeting of farmers who operate 

digesters in Vermont on an annual basis, Field trips with farmers when necessary (mainly at 

consultant’s discretion) 

2. Field trips with public sector entities and NGO’s, with RDF’s consent (e.g. USDA, DOE, EPA, 

ANR), when necessary. 

3. Inform relevant farmers about grant opportunities (see below on tracking status with individual 

farmers and potential projects) 

http://www.vermontbidsystem.com/BidPreview.aspx?BidID=12995
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4. Develop regular communication for dairy farmers, with advice on content from RDF Executive 

Committee, as necessary 

 E-mail all MFO and LFO and perhaps select and identifiable small farms 

5. Confer with RDF to identify key stakeholders and meet with all of them regularly. 

 

The RDF will provide, as it is able, work product from the previous contractor, which can help with 

outreach and development.   The Vermont Agency of Agriculture, Food & Markets will provide the 

consultant with a list of medium and large farms, with street address.
1
  

4.) The RFP calls for compiling a “database of contacts, categorized and/or 
searchable by key words….”  Could this database be a simple 
spreadsheet or is the expectation that it be a much more sophisticated 
IT system? 

Any searchable, well-categorized means of cataloging contacts is suitable. 

5.) How many projects does the RDF anticipate being initiated over the 
course of one year? 

As shown in the RFP on page 4, the RDF expects the proposer to state its goals for the work, how 

progress toward the goals will be measures, and the expected outcomes.  Initiating projects can be an 

intermediary step toward achieving certain outcomes.   

6.) Item # 3 under Activities To Lower Market Barriers”, the RFP states that 
“As necessary: report on state and federal regulations and policies…”  Is 
the expectation that the coordinator  thoroughly understand all this 
information and be aware of every change and update in policy at both 
the state and federal level? 

The coordinator should know key regulations and policies that affect digester development in 

Vermont. 

7.) Will the successful bidder have full access to all the information 
(technical, financial, operational and ownership structure etc.) about 
the other digester projects that have been installed in Vermont? 

The RDF is in the process of gaining access to work product from the previous coordinator – 

however, much of the information may be obsolete or lost.  Available items will include: 

 The coordinator’s reports to the RDF. 

 A short history of the genesis of the RDF and some of the early projects.   

Technical particulars of Vermont’s fleet of digesters is available on the EPA’s AgSTAR web site, at 

http://www2.epa.gov/agstar/livestock-anaerobic-digester-database .  

As for ownership structure, all of Vermont’s digesters are farmer-owned.   

 

  

                                                      
1
 Within Vermont’s Accepted Agricultural Practices 

(http://agriculture.vermont.gov/sites/ag/files/ACCEPTED%20AGRICULTURAL%20PRACTICE%20REGULATI

ONS.pdf), a medium farm, in the case of a dairy, has 200-699 cows, and a large farm has 700 or more cows.  There 

are approximately 140 medium and 25 large dairy farms in Vermont.   

http://www2.epa.gov/agstar/livestock-anaerobic-digester-database
http://agriculture.vermont.gov/sites/ag/files/ACCEPTED%20AGRICULTURAL%20PRACTICE%20REGULATIONS.pdf
http://agriculture.vermont.gov/sites/ag/files/ACCEPTED%20AGRICULTURAL%20PRACTICE%20REGULATIONS.pdf
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8.) Can you give any kind of salary range? 
No.  The proposer should propose a level of effort that addresses the items asked for in the scope of 

work, and the budget should reflect that effort and scope of work.   

 


